

direct supervision and responsible charge. An architect who merely reviews standardized construction documents for preengineered or prototype buildings, is not the author of the technical submissions and the technical submissions were not prepared under a reviewing architect's responsible charge.

An architect shall cause those portions of technical submissions prepared by a professional consultant to be stamped with the impression of the seal of the professional consultant, with a clear identification of the consultant's areas of responsibility, signature, and date of issuance.

A public official charged with the enforcement of the state building code, or a municipal or county building code, shall not accept or approve any technical submissions involving the practice of architecture unless the technical submissions have been stamped with the architect's seal as required by this section or unless the applicant has certified on the technical submission to the applicability of a specific exception under section 118.18 permitting the preparation of technical submissions by a person not registered under this chapter. A building permit issued with respect to technical submissions which do not conform to the requirements of this section is invalid.

Sec. 13. NEW SECTION. 118.29 RULES.

The board may adopt rules consistent with this chapter for the administration and enforcement of this chapter and may prescribe forms to be issued. The rules may include, but are not limited to, standards and criteria for licensure, license renewal, professional conduct, misconduct, and discipline. Violation of a rule of conduct is grounds for disciplinary action or reprimand or probation at the discretion of the board. The board may enter into a consent order with an architect which acknowledges an architect's violation and agreement to refrain from any further violation. A willful or repeated violation of a rule of conduct is grounds for disciplinary action as provided in section 118.13.

Approved May 1, 1987

CHAPTER 93

MOTOR VEHICLE FUEL PUMPS, PUBLIC SCALES, AND METERS

S.F. 70

AN ACT relating to motor vehicle fuel pumps and public scales by revising provisions governing licensing, inspection, calibration, and sealing by the department of agriculture and land stewardship and providing a penalty.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

Section 1. Section 214.1, subsection 2, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

2. "Gasoline Motor vehicle fuel pump" ~~shall mean any means a~~ pump, meter, or similar measuring device used for measuring gasoline motor vehicle fuel.

Sec. 2. Section 214.1, Code 1987, is amended by adding the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 3. "Motor vehicle fuel" means a substance or combination of substances which is intended to be or is capable of being used for the purpose of propelling or running by combustion any internal combustion engine and is kept for sale or sold for that purpose.

Sec. 3. Section 214.2, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

214.2 LICENSE.

Every person who ~~shall use~~ uses or ~~display~~ displays for use any public scale, pump, or meter used in measuring the quantity of gasoline motor vehicle fuel or fuel oil sold to consumer customers shall secure a license for ~~said~~ the scale, pump, or meter from the department.

Sec. 4. Section 214.3, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

214.3 FEE.

The license for a public scale shall expire on December 31 of each year, and for a gasoline motor vehicle fuel pump or meter on June 30 of each year.

~~A~~ ~~The~~ fee for each ~~said~~ license shall be four dollars per annum ~~provided, however, except~~ that the fee for gasoline motor vehicle fuel pumps and meters shall be two dollars per annum if paid within one month from the date ~~said~~ the license fee is due.

A license fee on every gasoline motor vehicle fuel pump and meter is due the day ~~any such~~ the pump or meter is placed in operation.

Sec. 5. Section 214.5, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

214.5 LICENSE TO BE DISPLAYED INSPECTION STICKERS.

~~For each scale, pump, or meter licensed, the department shall issue an inspection sticker, which shall not exceed two inches by two inches in size. The license plate inspection sticker shall be displayed prominently on the front of the scale, or pump or meter, and the defacing or wrongful removal of such plate the sticker shall be punished as provided in chapter 189. Absence of license plate shall be an inspection sticker is prima-facie evidence that the weighing or measuring device scale, pump, or meter is being operated contrary to law.~~

Sec. 6. Section 214.9, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

214.9 SELF-SERVICE GASOLINE MOTOR VEHICLE FUEL PUMPS.

~~Self-service gasoline motor vehicle fuel pumps and self-service special fuel pumps at service motor vehicle fuel stations may be equipped with automatic latch-open devices on the fuel dispensing hose nozzle only if the nozzle valve is the automatic closing type.~~

Sec. 7. NEW SECTION. 214.11 INSPECTIONS – PENALTY.

The department of agriculture and land stewardship shall provide for annual inspections of all motor vehicle fuel pumps licensed under this chapter. Inspections shall be for the purpose of determining the accuracy of the pumps' measuring mechanisms, and for such purpose the department's inspectors may enter upon the premises of any wholesale dealer or retail dealer, as they are defined in section 214A.1, of motor vehicle fuel or fuel oil within this state. Upon completion of an inspection, the inspector shall affix the department's seal to the measuring mechanism of the pump. The seal shall be appropriately marked, dated, and recorded by the inspector. If the owner of an inspected and sealed pump is registered with the department as a servicer in accordance with section 215.23, or employs a person so registered as a servicer, the owner or other servicer may open the pump, break the department's seal, recalibrate the measuring mechanism if necessary, and reseal the pump as long as the department is notified of the recalibration within forty-eight hours, on a form provided by the department. A person violating a provision of this section is, upon conviction, guilty of a simple misdemeanor.

Sec. 8. Section 214.4, Code 1987, is repealed.

Approved May 4, 1987